
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

South Lakeland House, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ 
www.southlakeland.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of  

the Human Resources Committee 

on Tuesday, 26 November 2019, at 3.00 p.m. 

in the District Council Chamber, 
South Lakeland House, Kendal 

 
 
 
 

Committee Membership 
 

Councillors 
 

Pat Bell 

Roger Bingham 

Philip Dixon 

Rachael Hogg (Chairman) 

Dave Khan 

Brian Rendell 

Matt Severn 

Janet Willis (Vice-Chairman) 

Mark Wilson 

 

 
 
Note – Where relevant, agendas for Members are labelled “Private Document Pack” and 
contain exempt information within the papers. Any relevant pages are marked as restricted 
within Agendas labelled “Public Document Pack”. 
 
 
Friday, 15 November 2019 
 
Linda Fisher, Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) 
 
 
 
For all enquiries, please contact:-  

Committee Administrator: Una Bell 

 

Telephone: 01539 793248 

e-mail: committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  APOLOGIES   

 To receive apologies for absence, if any.  

2  MINUTES  5 - 8 

 To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meeting of the Committee held on 10 September 2019 (copy attached). 

 

3  MINUTES OF APPEALS SUB-COMMITTEE  9 - 10 

 To receive the Minutes of the Appeals Sub-Committee held on 7 October 2019 
(copy attached) and for the Chairman of the Sub-Committee to sign, as a correct 
record. 

 

4  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this 
Agenda.  

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct, 
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other 
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s 
Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.) 

Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable 
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as 
any other registrable or other interests. 

If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration of 
interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she is advised 
to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 

5  ANNUAL HEALTH AND SAFETY REPORT  11 - 26 

 To consider the Annual Health and Safety Report 2018/19.  

6  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS   

 To consider whether the items in Part II of the Agenda should be considered in 
the presence of the press and public. 

 

PART II   

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number)  

 

7  JOINT CONSULTATIVE PANEL  
 
- Paragraph 4 - Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or 

contemplated consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour 
relations matter arising between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and 
employees of, or office holders under the authority.  
 

27 - 32 

 To receive the notes of the meeting of the Joint Consultative Panel held on 
20 August 2019. 

 



8  HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELLBEING COMMITTEE  
 
- Paragraph 2 - Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.  

 

33 - 40 

 To receive the minutes of the meeting of the Health, Safety and Wellbeing 
Committee held on 14 August 2019. 

 

9  ORGANISATIONAL ESTABLISHMENT UPDATE  
 
- Paragraph 1 - Information relating to any individual.  
- Paragraph 2 - Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.  
- Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 

particular person (including the authority holding that information)  
- Paragraph 4 - Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or 

contemplated consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour 
relations matter arising between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and 
employees of, or office holders under the authority.  
 

41 - 74 

 To consider the updated Organisation Establishment Report from 1 January 
2020 and final Customer Connect updates to the new operating model. 

 

10  SPECIAL PAID LEAVE APPLICATION  
 
- Paragraph 1 - Information relating to any individual.  
- Paragraph 2 - Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.  

 

75 - 78 

 To consider an application for Special Paid Leave.  



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
10.09.2019 Human Resources Committee 
 

 HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Human Resources Committee held in the 
District Council Chamber, on Tuesday, 10 September 2019, at 3.00 p.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 

 Rachael Hogg (Chairman) 
Janet Willis (Vice-Chairman) 

 
Pat Bell 

Roger Bingham 
 

Philip Dixon 
Dave Khan 

 

Brian Rendell 
Mark Wilson 

 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Matt Severn. 
 
 

Officers 
 

Courage 
Aiguobasinmwin 

Trainee Solicitor 

Una Bell Case Management Team Leader 

Dawn Bradley Human Resources Advisor 

Lawrence Conway Chief Executive 

Linda Fisher Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist 
(Monitoring Officer) 

Kerry Johnson-Metcalfe Human Resources Lead Specialist 

David Sykes Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources 

Matthew Williams Economic Development Project Officer 

 

HR/1 MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED – That the Chairman be authorised to sign, as a correct record, the minutes 
of the meeting held on 26 March 2019. 
 

HR/2 MINUTES OF APPEALS SUB-COMMITTEE  
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Human Resources Sub-Committee 
held on 6 June 2019 be received and the Chairman of the appropriate Sub-Committee be 
authorised to sign as correct record.  
 

HR/3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised. 
 

HR/4 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That the items in Part II of the Agenda be dealt with following the exclusion 
of the press and public. 
 

Page 5

Item No.2



2 
10.09.2019 Human Resources Committee 
 

HR/5 CONSTITUTION OF THE JOINT CONSULTATIVE PANEL  
 
RESOLVED – That the changes to the Constitution of the Joint Consultative Panel be 
endorsed.  
 

HR/6 SICKNESS ABSENCE REPORT 2018/19  
 
The Human Resources Advisor presented the Annual Report on Employee Sickness 
Absence which covered the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019. She informed the 
Committee that the recommendation was that the report be noted and that the target of 
7.50 days for sickness absence for 2019/20 be approved. 
 
Human Resources Advisor responded to questions raised by Members and clarified that 
for the 2018/19 period there had been a 20.8% increase in working days lost. This was 
attributable to an increase in the average duration of long term sickness absence cases, 
whilst the number of incidences remained the same as the previous year. She went on to 
outline the Health Care Cash Plan, which was available to all employees, and highlighted 
the level of pro-active support available through the Employee Assistance Programme. 
She informed Members that the report identified the main reasons for sickness absence 
as musculoskeletal disorders and stress, depression, anxiety and fatigue. Analysis of the 
data had confirmed that vast majority of absences had been non-work related however, 
this did not change the Council’s support provided for employees. 
 
The Human Resources Advisor reported that there had been an increase in 
cardiovascular related absences, which equated to 330 days compared to 97 days in 
2017/18. Members considered cardiovascular health interventions and agreed that the 
installation of a blood pressure monitor may encourage employees to check regularly their 
blood pressure. 
 
The Human Resources Advisor informed Members that the Council promoted positive 
health and wellbeing at work through the Health Advocate programme and the Health and 
Wellbeing week, during which Officers had access to a full health analysis, which included 
a range of health checks. 
 
In response to a further question, the Human Resources Advisor explained that the 
organisation’s sickness absence target was currently 6.5 days per FTE however, the 
report proposed to increase this figure to 7.5 days per FTE for 2019/20 which would 
create a more realistic and achievable target.  
 
RESOLVED – That  
 
(1) the Annual Report on Employee Sickness Absence be noted; and 
 
(2) the sickness absence target for 2019/20 of 7.50 days be approved.   
 

HR/7 MENTAL WELLBEING AT WORK POLICY  
 
The Human Resources Advisor presented the Mental Wellbeing at Work Policy. It was 
anticipated that the introduction of the policy would raise awareness of mental health, 
remove its associated stigma and improve the wellbeing of staff by building resilience. 
 
The Human Resources Advisor responded to questions raised by Members and advised 
that suicide awareness was not within the policy but could be considered in the future. 

Page 6



3 
10.09.2019 Human Resources Committee 
 
She explained that the policy was the start of a plan of mental health initiatives and a ‘time 
to talk’ pledge.  
 
Members welcomed the policy and agreed that it was a positive step forward in providing 
guidance and understanding of mental wellbeing. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Mental Wellbeing at Work Policy and procedure, at Appendix 1 to 
the report, be approved. 
 

HR/8 PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED - That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the 
grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 
of Schedule 12 A of the Act as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006 by virtue of the paragraphs indicated. 
 

HR/9 HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELLBEING COMMITTEE 
 
- Paragraph 2 - Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.  
 
The Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources informed Members that the inclusion 
on the agenda of the Health, Safety and Wellbeing Committee minutes were to ensure the 
Human Resources Committee were aware of the work, discussions and actions reported 
to the Health, Safety and Wellbeing Committee. He went on to provide an overview of the 
minutes of the meeting held on 17 April 2019 and responded to questions raised by 
Members. 
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Health, Safety and Wellbeing 
Committee held on 17 April 2019 be received. 
 

HR/10 JOINT CONSULTATIVE PANEL 
 
- Paragraph 4 - Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated 

consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter arising 
between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders 
under the authority.  

 
RESOLVED – That the notes of the meeting of the Joint Consultative Panel held on 12 
March 2019 be received. 
 

HR/11 REQUEST UNDER THE EXCEPTIONAL SPECIAL LEAVE, SECONDMENT AND 
LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT POLICIES 
 
- Paragraph 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 - Information relating to any individual.  
- Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.  
- Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person 

(including the authority holding that information)  
- Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated consultations 

or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter arising between the 
authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders under the 
authority.  

- Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be 
maintained in legal proceedings.  

Page 7



4 
10.09.2019 Human Resources Committee 
 
 
The Economic Development Programme Manager presented a report which sought 
approval for the request of paid leave under the SLDC Exceptional Special Leave, 
Secondment and Learning and Development Policies. He explained that consultation had 
taken place with Corporate Management Team, the Human Resources Committee, the 
Portfolio Holder and the Leader of the Council and it had been agreed that a learning 
agreement be put in place to clearly set out the outputs on the employee’s return. 
 
Members gave consideration to the report and agreed it was an excellent opportunity for 
the employee and the Council. 
 
RESOLVED – That  
 
(1)  the request for paid leave for the duration of the Fellowship, in line with the special 
leave policy, and outlined within the report be approved;  
 
(2) support be given to the post holder and the authorities learning objectives; and  
 
(3) that the member of staff report back to Committee on the development opportunity. 
  
 

HR/12 RE-ADMISSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED – That the press and public be re-admitted to the meeting. 
 
The Chairman, Councillor Rachael Hogg, took the opportunity to thank Kerry Johnson-
Metcalfe the HR Lead Specialist, who was leaving at the end of September, for her 
support of the HR Committee and wished her well for the future. 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 4.04 p.m. 

Page 8



3 
07.10.2019 Appeals Sub-Committee 
 

 

APPEALS SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Appeals Sub-Committee held in the District 
Council Chamber, South Lakeland House, Kendal, on Monday, 7 October 2019, at 
1.30 p.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
  

Dave Khan 
 

Brian Rendell 
 

Janet Willis 
 

Officers 
 

Natalie Longfellow Clerk 

Charles Officer Adviser to the Panel 

 

APP/7 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  
 
RESOLVED – That Councillor Janet Willis be elected Chairman for the meeting. 
 

APP/8 APOLOGIES AND RECONSTITUTION OF MEMBERSHIP  
 
There were no apologies and there had been no change in the membership of the Sub-
Committee and, therefore, no reconstitution was necessary. 
 

APP/9 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised. 
 

APP/10 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That the item in Part II of the Agenda be dealt with following the exclusion 
of the press and public. 
 

APP/11 PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED - That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public, with the exception of the appellant and their representative, be excluded from 
the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12 A of the Act as 
amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006 by 
virtue of the paragraph indicated. 
 

APP/12 APPEAL - 2019/20 - 003 
 
- Paragraph 1 - Information relating to any individual.  
 
Following introductions, the Chairman advised all present of the correct procedure to be 
followed during the appeal hearing. 
 
The appellant was in attendance and was represented and assisted in presenting their 
case by a union representative. 
 

Page 9

Item No.3



4 
07.10.2019 Appeals Sub-Committee 
 

 

The case for the Council was presented by the Performance, Innovation and 
Commissioning Lead Specialist, supported by a Human Resources Adviser. 
 
Following presentation of written and oral statements, questions were put to the appellant 
and their representative and to the Council representatives.  The appellant and their 
representative and the Council’s representatives were also provided an opportunity to 
raise questions.  The cases for the appellant and the Council were then summed up. 
 
Note – the Sub-Committee passed a resolution to adjourn the meeting to exclude the 
applicant and their representative, in making its decision, pursuant to schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972 as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
Information) (Variation) Order 2006 by virtue of the paragraph indicated:-  
 
Paragraph 5 – Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could 
be maintained in legal proceedings. 
 
The Sub-Committee, together with the Adviser to the Panel, then withdrew to consider the 
circumstances put forward. 
 
After reconvening, the Chairman said that the Panel had listened very carefully to the 
facts that had been presented, and had reached a decision.  The Chairman stated that a 
letter confirming the Panel's decision would be sent to the appellant within five working 
days. 
 
The Chairman read out the decision of the Panel as contained in the following resolution. 
 
RESOLVED – That 
 
(1) the original decision by Management be upheld; and 
 
(2) a letter confirming the Sub-Committee’s decision be sent to the appellant within 
five working days of the Appeal. 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 4.11 p.m. 

Page 10



South Lakeland District Council 

Human Resources Committee 

Tuesday, 26 November 2019 

Annual Health and Safety report 2018/19 

 

Portfolio:   Customer and Commercial Services and People Portfolio Holder 

Report from:  Director Customer and Commercial Services 

Report Author: Sion Thomas – Operational Lead for Delivery and Commercial 
Services 

Wards:  All 

Forward Plan: Not applicable 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 That the annual report is received, and the Council continues to monitor and review its 
performance and continually looks to improve the health and safety culture of the 
organisation. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that the Human Resources Committee receives and notes the 
Annual Health and Safety Report 2018/19. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 Attached to this report is the Annual Health and Safety Report for 2018/19.   

3.2 It is clear that the Council is moving steadily in improving health and safety 
performance.  

3.4 The Council set ambitious targets for 2018/19 to continuously improve the health and 
safety performance of health and safety. Those targets include: 

 

• SLDC will adopt a lane end policy to reduce accidents. 

• Review the reversing audit previously undertaken to ensure that the measures 

taken are suitable and sufficient. 

• Develop a behavioural safety and leadership programme to help embed Health 

and Safety culture.  

• We will use a 3rd party organisation to undertake an audit of key areas which 

carry a high risk in terms of Health and Safety.  

• Consolidate control systems for better communication and documents control. 

• Promote the Reach for Zero Safety and Health Policy. 

• Review of Risk Assessments throughout the organisation.  

• Implement Statement of Compliance for the Council’s asset team.   

 

 

Page 11

Item No.5



3.5 A summary of the steady improvements to meet those targets include: 

- A new waste collection policy was brought in, in February 2019 to make routes 
safer and deliver economies and efficiencies for the department. Future recycling 
boxes have also reduced from 55 to 44 litres to help with reduce staff fatigue and 
reduce Musko-skeletal disorders.  

 
- Streetscene have prepared Rounds Risk Assessments (RRA) looking particularly 

at the reverse manoeuvres. The critical review has also led to further work to 
reduce risks arising from unclassified roads such as lanes and entering agricultural 
premises. As new properties come on line we will look at them all individually and 
if any present a particular problem households will be informed that they will need 
to present containers at collection points.  

 
- In December 2018, SLDC achieved the bronze level of the Better Health at Work 

Award. To achieve this, SLDC had to demonstrate a commitment to health and 
safety 
 

- Work has continued to reduce the risks arising from using contractors by training 
for contractors and undertaking site audits whilst projects are on site. 

 
- Safety and health training continues to be a core element of the council risk control 

measures. All employees have undertaken the IOSH Working Safely courses. 
Further review of training needs will be undertaken through the transition phase of 
Customer Connect.  

 

- New roles within the council have meant that guidance and forms were revised to 
control the risks arising from construction projects under CDM 2015 and training 
provided to those employees working with construction/ playground projects.  

 

- A third party organisation was brought in to audit Health and Safety for the 
organisation. Tribe Ltd undertook an audit of Streetscene, Grounds Maintenance 
and Facilities Management/ Assets. Work is now underway to address the 
recommendations in that report.   

 
3.6 Members are asked to note and receive the report. 

4.0 Consultation 

4.1 The report has been circulated to the Senior Management Team and has been taken 
to  the JCP and Health and Safety committee for note.  

5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 There are no alternative options.  The report is to provide a review of health and safety 
within the Council for the period 2018/19. 

6.0 Links to Council Priorities 

6.1 The Council continues to work towards the Council Plan by empowering people and 
ensuring excellence and openness. 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 Not applicable – the report is to note. 

Page 12



Human Resources 

7.2 The Annual Health and Safety report 2018/19 will be presented to the HR committee 
for note.  

Legal 

7.3 There are no legal issues to raise with this report. 

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? No. 

7.5 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: The 
report is to receive the annual report of Health & Safety for 2017/18. 

 

Equality and Diversity 

7.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No      

7.8 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: The 
report is to receive the annual report of Health & Safety for 2017/18. 

 

Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Health and Safety not kept 
under regular review. 

Risk of injuries, ill health, 
prosecution  

Annual report and regular 
proactive monitoring and 
review of working 
practices. 

Contact Officers 

Sion Thomas, Operational Lead for Commercial and Delivery Services 

01539 793192, sion.thomas@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

(Delete if no appendices attached) 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Annual Health and Safety report.  

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services 08.11.19 

Section 151 Officer 08.11.19 

Monitoring Officer 08.11.19 

SMT 08.11.19 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Assistant Director  N/A 

Human Resources Manager 08.11.19 

Communications Team N/A 

Page 13

mailto:sion.thomas@southlakeland.gov.uk


Circulated to Date sent 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder 08.11.19 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee N/A 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

 

Page 14



Annual Health and Safety Report 2018/19

October 2019

www.southlakeland.gov.uk

Appendix 1

Page 15



Health and Safety PolicyAnnual Health and Safety Report 2018/19

page 2 South Lakeland District Council - REACH4ZERO incidents

Introduction 
“We all have a responsibility for Health and 
safety, looking after our communities, 
colleagues and our own well-being. 

This year, thanks to the great efforts of our 
staff, SLDC can report a decline in incident 
numbers and incident rates. The rate of legally 
reportable incidents in the council is also very 
encouraging. Initiatives that have taken place 
during the year include improving the 
management of health and safety through the 
introduction of improved guidance and polices 
and a greater focus on communicating the key 
messages across the organisation. This work is 
obviously having a positive effect and I look 
forward to hearing us report even greater 
improvements next year. 

Thank you for all your continued hard work.” 

 

 

 

Lawrence Conway  

Chief Executive  

  

Contents 
page 

Introduction 2 

Health and safety performance 3 

Health and safety training 7 

Corporate safety, health and wellbeing 7 

Estates issues ‘making our premises  

safer’ 8 

Streetscene – safety and health 9 

Future priorities 2019 10

Page 16



page 3

Health, Safety and Wellbeing PolicyAnnual Health and Safety Report 2018/19

South Lakeland District Council - REACH4ZERO incidents

Health and safety 
performance  
Our five year REACH4Zero Improvement Plan 

defines a measurable programme of activities to 

provide direction and to actively engage all of our 

personnel at every level and location.  

Where appropriate, the plan reflects the risk 

priority programme.  

Key highlights include:  

ü SLDC will adopt a lane end policy to reduce 

accidents. 

ü Review the reversing audit previously 

undertaken to ensure that the measures 

taken are suitable and sufficient. 

ü Develop a behavioural safety and 

leadership programme to help embed 

health and safety culture.  

ü We will use a third party organisation to 

undertake an audit of key areas which carry 

a high risk in terms of health and safety.  

ü Consolidate control systems for better 

communication and documents control. 

ü Promote the Reach for Zero Safety and 

Health Policy. 

ü Review of risk assessments 

ü Implement Statement of Compliance for the 

council’s asset team.   

 

Page 17



Annual Health and Safety Report 2018/19Annual Health and Safety Report 2018/19

page 4 South Lakeland District Council - REACH4ZERO incidents

Incident data is recorded and provided via the 

council’s Safety Management System Safety 

Cloud. During 2018 there were 30 accidents 

Accident type employees 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Contact with moving machinery or material 

being machined

2 0 2 8 1

Contact with hot surface or material 0 1 0 0 1

Contact with sharp material or object 0 5 2 0 3

Hit by moving, flying or falling object 3 3 5 4 6

Hit by a moving vehicle 0 1 1 0 1

Hit something fixed or stationary 2 1 0 0 4

Injured while handling, lifting or carrying 4 10 5 5 4

Slipped, tripped or fell on the same level 6 11 11 12 6

Exposed or in contact with a harmful 

substance

1 0 1 0 1

Injured by an animal 2 1 2 1 0

Physically assaulted by a person 0 2 0 0 0

Another kind of accident 5 2 1 1 3

TOTAL 25 37 30 31 30

(Table 1) continuing the trend of a low number of 

accidents that the council has had for a number 

of years.  

Accidents total injuries and incidents

Table 1

Page 18



page 5

Health, Safety and Wellbeing PolicyAnnual Health and Safety Report 2018/19

South Lakeland District Council - REACH4ZERO incidents

During 2018 there were four staff incidents,  one 

agency staff incident and one incident relating to 

a member of the public (Table 2).  reportable to 

RIDDOR Incidents  Staff Contractors/ 
visitors/public

Agency

An injury meaning they had to be taken 

from the scene of an accident to 

hospital (RIDDOR)

0 1 0

Over seven day injury (RIDDOR) 4 0 1

Specified injuries to workers (RIDDOR) 0 0 0

TOTAL 4 1 1

the HSE, this number being in line with the low 

number of RIDDOR reportable incidents.  

See: www.hse.gov.uk/riddor (Table 2)  

Table 2

Neighbourhood Services account for five out the 

six RIDDOR reportable incidents which is 

understandable considering the nature of Work 

undertaken by Streetscene. 

Slipped, tripped or fell on the same level and 

injured while handling, lifting or carrying [manual 

handling] were the most common type of 

incident. This concurs with the non-fatal injuries 

at work in Great Britain.  

Page 19



Health and Safety PolicyAnnual Health and Safety Report 2018/19

page 6 South Lakeland District Council - REACH4ZERO incidents

Lost time accidents 

The total number of days of Lost Time Accidents 
(LTA) from RIDDOR reportable incidents was 84 
days where the employee was prevented from 
working for seven days or more. All LTA were 
from Neighbourhood Services undertakings. The 
agency staff and member of the public RIDDOR 
reportable incident are not included within these 
84 days of LTA.  

Near miss incidents 

Many safety activities are reactive and not 
proactive, and some organisations wait for losses 
to occur before taking steps to prevent a 
recurrence. Near miss incidents and safety 
observations often precede loss producing 
events but may be overlooked as there was no 
harm (no injury, damage or loss). An organisation 
may not have a reporting culture where 
employees are encouraged to report these close 
calls. Thus, many opportunities to prevent the 
incidents are lost. History has shown repeatedly 
that most incidents, both serious and 
catastrophic, were preceded by warnings or near 
miss incidents. Recognising and reporting near 
miss incidents and safety observations can 
significantly improve worker safety and enhance 
an organisation’s safety culture. 

In 2017 there were 91 near miss incidents and 
safety observations reported. In 2018, there were 
19 near misses reported. Whilst we accept there 
may have been a drop in near miss reporting. It 
is unlikely that near misses have dropped by a 
significant level. Work will be undertaken in the 
future to review and streamline safety cloud to 
improve its usage.  

Its sets out in the future priorities for 2019 that 
Safety Cloud is to be updated and reviewed. The 
system is seen by some users as cumbersome 
and it is felt that this stops people from reporting 
near misses or using the system altogether. 
Work will be carried out to remove unnecessary 
levels and modules to make navigation much 
easier and user friendly.  

Page 20



page 7

Health, Safety and Wellbeing PolicyAnnual Health and Safety Report 2018/19

South Lakeland District Council - REACH4ZERO incidents

Health and safety 
training 
Safety and health training continues to be a core 

element of the council risk control measures. 

New courses to meet the demands of the 

operational services have been used to good 

effect such as IOSH e-learning. As part of the 

Customer Connect programme, each employee 

will receive their own transition passport to help 

with the transition period through Customer 

Connect. As part of this work, each employee will 

be trained in new areas of work. SLDC will use 

this opportunity to update and refresh employees 

in good health and safety practice. This will 

progress in 2019/20 financial year.  

Corporate safety, 
health and 
wellbeing  
In December 2018, SLDC achieved the bronze 

level of the Better Health at Work Award. To 

achieve this, SLDC had to demonstrate a 

commitment to health and safety – including 

evidence around risk assessments, policies and 

systems for near misses, control measures and 

demonstrate how that information is 

communicated to staff. We also had to 

demonstrate that staff have a suitable working 

environment. Moving forward for the silver award 

SLDC will also looking at the development of an 

alcohol and drugs policy. 

SLDC ran a Health and Wellbeing week in 

February 2019. Activities included personal 

training plans created for employees to help with 

desk based exercises, foot, knee and hip health 

and for menopause. Free staff health checks 

were on offer looking at things such as BMI and 

blood pressure. Other activities included lunch 

time walks, badminton sessions.  

The Health and Wellbeing week was followed up 

with a skin health training session in April which 

was well received. Those employees who 

requested it, received individual feedback on skin 

burning risk, moisture levels and the current level 

of damage with advice of how to improve skin 

Page 21



page 8 South Lakeland District Council - REACH4ZERO incidents

Health and Safety PolicyAnnual Health and Safety Report 2018/19

care. Sessions in the future will be held for our 

streetscene officers/locality officers who are 

exposed to the sun on a day to day basis due to 

work.  

SLDC have also provided mental health 

resilience training looking at stress, depression 

and anxiety and the council is currently working 

on a mental health policy. From the most recent 

figures available, 17% of stress related absences 

were work related and 83% stress related 

absences were non work related. 

Safety and health training continues to be a core 

element of the council risk control measures. All 

employees have undertaken the IOSH Working 

Safely courses. Further review of training needs 

will be undertaken through the transition phase 

of Customer Connect.  

Estates issues 
‘making our 
premises safer’ 
All service contracts in relation to management 

of health and safety in buildings have been re-

tendered and new contracts are now in place.  

These contracts cover areas such as: 

- Legionella monitoring 

- Portable appliance testing 

- Asbestos monitoring in line with CAR 2012 

- Gas appliance testing  

Statement of compliance will be brought forward 

for each building to ensure that statutory 

compliance is being met. This is so that the 

council is being proactive in checking compliance 

as opposed to reliance on a third party 

organisation. Work has continued to reduce the 

risks arising from using contractors by training for 

contractors and undertaking site audits whilst 

projects are on site including capital projects.  

New roles within the council have meant that 

guidance and forms were revised to control the 

risks arising from construction projects under 

CDM 2015 and training provided to those 

employees working with construction/playground 

projects.  

Page 22



page 9South Lakeland District Council - REACH4ZERO incidents

Health, Safety and Wellbeing PolicyAnnual Health and Safety Report 2018/19

A third party organisation was brought in to audit 

health and safety for the organisation. Tribe Ltd 

undertook an audit of Streetscene, Grounds 

Maintenance and Facilities Management/Assets. 

Work is now underway to address the 

recommendations in that report.   

Streetscene – 
safety and health 

A new waste collection policy was brought in, in 

February 2019 to make routes safer and deliver 

economies and efficiencies for the department. 

Future recycling boxes have also reduced from 

55 to 44 litres to help with reduce staff fatigue and 

reduce musculoskeletal disorders. It should be 

noted that work related musculoskeletal 

absences amounted to 3%. Non work related 

musko skeletal absences amounted to 97%. 

Streetscene have revised Rounds Risk 

Assessments (RRA) looking particularly at the 

reverse manoeuvres. The critical review has also 

led to further work to reduce risks arising from 

unclassified roads such as lanes and entering 

agricultural premises. As new properties come on 

line we will look at them all individually and if any 

present a particular problem, households will be 

informed that they will need to present containers 

at collection points. All red reverses have been 

removed through a change in collection or 

through the use of rear clear reversing aids.  

Work is ongoing to look at all land end collections 

with a view to reducing risk for the service and 

improve efficiencies. It is expected that all lane 

ends will be rolled out from April 2020 with high 

risk lane end collections brought on line sooner.   

 

 

Page 23



page 10

Annual Health and Safety Report 2018/19

South Lakeland District Council - REACH4ZERO incidents

Future priorities for 
2019 
Priorities identified to drive staff safety and health 

during 2019 are as follows: 

ü To build safety into the cultural change 

taking place with the Customer Connect 

programme.  

ü To build on the outcomes from the audit 

undertaken in November 2018 and to set 

out an implementation plan for streetscene 

to cover all improvements.  

ü Improve our ‘visible leadership’ tour 

processes to engage with employees and 

contractors.  

ü Safety arrangement workshops to further 

embed knowledge and understanding of 

how to manage significant risks.  

ü To review the Safety Cloud system and 

help consolidate control systems and data 

storing to ease communication and data 

control.  

ü Increased compliance of Managers Monthly 

Audits prepared on Safety Cloud. 

ü To implement the streetscene improvement 

plan to provide a planned programme of 

work and activities to ensure we strive for 

continuous improvement.  

ü To review the Safety Cloud software to 

streamline the system and ensure that the 

organisation is not double keying 

information into various systems.   

ü To set up a Statement of Compliance for all 

buildings under the control of SLDC 

whether that be council occupied or tenant 

occupied buildings in conjunction with the 

facilities management team to ensure the 

council reviews compliance at certain times 

of the year so the council can review 

performance.  

ü To set up a road safety module/course, 

ensuring risk assessment controls include 

grey fleet (vehicle where mileage allowance 

is paid) are in place, look at checking road 

worthiness, insurance and driving licences 

periodically. Review against good practice 

models (e.g. HSE, ROSPA, Aviva) and 

develop the management of occupational 

road risk (MORR) approach.  

ü To help assess manual handling issues for 

the council and implement a monitoring 

regime that includes inspection, workplace 

engagement and audit.  

ü To work with the Human Resource team to 

develop a behavioural safety and 

leadership programme and to agree IOSH 

Working and Leading Safely re-fresher 

programme.  

Page 24



page 11

Annual Health and Safety Report 2018/19

South Lakeland District Council - REACH4ZERO incidents

ü Review the council’s current health and 

safety arrangements to ensure that the 

regulations are up to date and advice given 

within the arrangements is in line with 

industry standards.  

ü To work with the Council’s Corporate 

Leadership team, communications and 

marketing team to help promote the Health 

and Safety Policy and ‘Reach for Zero’.  

ü To work with the Operational leads to 

review current risk assessments, COSHH 

information and safe systems of work and 

provide guidance to address missing or out 

of date information. The council wishes to 

streamline this information to ensure that 

the organisation is working from the same 

risk assessments to streamline the system 

and to bring about a greater understanding 

re: health and safety requirements.  

ü To review, adapt the monthly departmental 

audits and monitor the completion of these 

audits.  

 

Page 25



Page 26



Document is Restricted

Page 27

Item No.7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 33

Item No.8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 41

Item No.9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 53

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1,2,3,4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 61

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1,2,3,4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 75

Item No.10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Minutes of Appeals Sub-Committee
	5 Annual Health and Safety Report
	Annual Health and Safety Report 201819 Appendix 1

	7 Joint Consultative Panel
	8 Health, Safety and Wellbeing Committee
	9 Organisational Establishment Update
	Organisational Establishment List  - Appendix A
	Organisational Establishment Charts  - Appendix B

	10 Special Paid Leave Application

